P \
¢ 7Y
Board of Directors
Regular Meeting Agenda

September 26, 2018 1:30 PM

Fort Bragg

Diana Stuart Fort Bragg Division
190 East Spruce
Conference Room

Video-Conferenced with:

Ukiah

Ukiah Valley Conference Center
200 South School Street
Chenin Blanc Room

AGENDA ITEMS

1.

Call to Order:

Public Comment: Anyone is welcome to attend MTA Board meetings to address items that are on the
agenda, or to bring other transit related matters to the attention of the Board. The time limit is 3 minutes
per speaker.

CONSENT CALENDAR

2. Minutes of June 27, 2018 Board Meeting 1
Information

3 Service Performance Report: July, 2018 / August, 2018 4
Information

4, Financial Report:
Information: Report to be Presented during regular Meeting -

5. Board Meeting Dates and Locations 6
Information

6. Capital Program: Update/Progress Report 7
Information

MTA Board of Directors Agenda for September 26, 2018 Page 1



ACTION & DISCUSSION

7. Unmet Needs 10
Action: Solicit Public Input

8. FY 2016/17 Fiscal and Compliance Audit/Single Audit 11
Action: Discussion, review and accept audits

9. Finance Report 46
Information

10. State of Good Repair (SB1) 47

Action: Review and approve Resolution #2018-09

11. MTA Special Events Schedule

Action: Approve addition of MTA Annual Special Events Schedule 49
12. Revision of FY 18/19 Capital Budget 52

Action: Review and approve Resolution #2018-10, Revision of MTA FY18/19 Capital Budget
13. Management Reports oral
14. Matters from Directors oral

ADJOURN Anticipated adjournment is 3:30 pm

Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA) Compliance

The Mendocino Transit Authority complies with ADA requirements and, upon request, will attempt to reasonably accommodate
individuals with disabilities by making meeting material available in appropriate alternative formats (pursuant o Government Code
Section 54953.2). Anyone requiring reasonable Interpreter services are available for the meeting by calling 707-462-5765, with seven
(7) day advance notice.

MTA Board of Directors Agenda for September 26, 2018 Page 2




Agenda item #2
Mendocino Transit Authority
Board of Directors Meeting
July 25, 2018
1:30 p.m.

MINUTES

Meeting Location Willits City Hall Conference Room
111 E. Commercial Street, Willits, CA 95490

CALL TO ORDER
1. Chair Mastin called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m.
ROLL CALL:
Directors Present: Chair Mastin, Peters, Gjerde, Tarbell, Scalmanini, Rodriguez
Directors Absent: Cross

Staff Present: Carla Meyer,General Manager
Jacob King, Operations Manager
Bob Butler, Maintenance Manager
John Pegan, Human Resource Manager
Mark Harvey, Finance Manager
Debra Dockins, Recording Secretary

Others: Two members of the public were present.
PUBLIC COMMENT

Willits resident, Mickey Hawkins, expressed her concern about the removal of benches
from several established stops in Willits and requested the addition of a Bus Stop at the
senior housing complex on Alder Street. The Board advised the local businesses had
required MTA to remove the benches, due to transient and garbage issues. Staff will
contact the businesses to determine if they would aflow the placement of a vandal
resistant bench.

CONSENT CALENDAR
2. Minutes of June 27, 2018

3. Service Performance Report: July 2017 - June 2018
4. Financial Report



5. Board Meeting Dates and Locations
6. Capital Program: Update and Progress Report

The financial report, item 4, was pulled from the consent calendar and placed

under Action and Discussion as item 7b. The Board requested item number 5,

Board Meeting Dates and Location be updated every six months.

Upon Motion by Director Rodriguez and seconded by Director Tarbell Consent
Calendar items 2 through 6 were accepted as presented by roll call vote:

AYES: Mastin, Peters, Gjerde, Tarbell, Scalmanini, Rodriguez
NO: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT:; Cross

ACTION & DISCUSSION

7. a. Unmet Transit Needs
Director Peters reported the Skunk Train is applying for grants to
restore passenger service between Wiillits and Fort Bragg, the Board
authorized General Manager Carla Meyer to pen and submit a
support letter as needed. Director Gjerde reported fire evacuees are
requesting MTA to provide service to the Lake Mendocino
Campground. Staff will arrange a meeting with Office of Emergency
Services (OES) to discuss scheduling needs of the fire evacuees.

b. Financial Report:

CFO Mark Harvey reported the audit is scheduled for 08/29/18 - 08/31/18.
Staff may need to request a brief extension of the State Controllers Report

which is due 10/15/18.

Upon Motion by Director Peters and seconded by Director Tarbell the Financial
Report was accepted as presented, by roll call vote:

AYES: Mastin, Peters, Scalmanini, Rodriguez, Gjerde, Tarbell
NO: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: Cross

8. Management Reports

Human Resources Director, John Pegan: Reported that recruitment is continuing

for the Transit Vehicle Operator position and noted that staff is conducting
outreach on social media.



Maintenance Manager Bob Butler: Reported he has been in contact with Ghilotti
Construction regarding the amount of dirt/dust accumulated at the MTA site, and
they agreed to a one-time cleaning. He reported a recent rash of thefts of the
solar panels and lights from the inland bus stop shelters. Regarding the stop at
Costco, he added that while Costco had agreed to supply electric power, they will
instead be supplying solar power., Chair Mastin recommended the installation of
a camera to capture images or deter theft of the solar panels and lights.

Operations Manager Jacob King: Reported the new Costco stop is experiencing
some issues with deliver trucks parking in the roadway. He is working with
Costco management to clear up this public safety concern.

General Manager Carla Meyer: reported that Bob Butier has been nominated for
the California Transit Authority, Small Operator Distinguished Service Award.
She is continuing to work on a highly competitive grant application. She advised
there will be an all staff training day, November 12th, 2018.

9, Matters from Directors

Director Tarbell thanked staff for their performance at the Fort Bragg Salmon
Barbeque event. He also requested that Directors return the questionnaire sent
from the Evaluation Committee soon. He concluded by requesting the General
Manager Evaluation be added to the Closed Session portion of the August
Meeting Agenda.

Director Rodriguez thanked Staff for the troliey service during the Willits 4th of
July festivities.

Chair Mastin adjourned the meeting at 2:21p.m.

Jim Mastin, Chair Debra Dockins, Recording Secretary



AGENDA ITEM #3

FY 18-19 RIDERSHIP PERFORMANCE BY ROUTE

JULY | AUG | SEPT | OCT | NOV | DEC | JAN | FEB | MAR | APR | MAY | JUN | 201615 v10 [ 201778 70| # change .
01 - Willits Local 850 | 877 1727 2266

03 - Ukiah - DAR 1219 | 1290 2509 2160 | 349 | 16%
04 - Fort Bragg - DAR 1185 | 1299 2484 1847 637 34%
05 - BraggAbout 1269 | 1542 2811 3069 3

07 - Jitney 267 295 562 341 221 65%
08 - Ukiah Evening 799 | 1016 1815 1482 333 22%
09 - Ukiah Local 9199 | 10377 19576 18935 641 3%
20 - Willits - Ukiah 2263 | 2437 4700 5309 :
|60 - Coaster 826 932 1758 1793 2
64 - Ukiah to Fort Bragg 449 | 475 924 879 45 5%
65 - CC Rider 1026 | 1020 2046 2065

85A - New Route &5 666 | 815 1481 1359 122 9%
74 - Saturday Gualala-Ukiah 101 76 177 184

75 - M-F Gualala to Ukiah 669 748 1417 1132 285 25%
95 - Pt. Arena to Santa Rosa 659 512 1171 991 180 18%
97 - Redwood Coast Regional | 223 | 273 496 560

Monthly Totals 21670 | 23984 45654 4 44372 | 1,282 3%




F.,Eul.

FY 17-18 RIDERSHIP PERFORMANCE BY ROUTE

JULY | AUG | SEPT| OCT | NOV | DEC | JAN | FEB | MAR | APR | MAY | JUN | 209718 Ym0 | 200677 vo [ # Change 9..33.
01 - Willits Local 978 1288 2266
03 - Ukiah - DAR 1450 | 710 2160
04 - Fort Bragg - DAR 1142 705 1847
05 - BraggAbout 1478 | 1591 3069
07 - Jitney 126 215 341
08 - Ukiah Evening 621 861 1482
09 - Ukiah Local 9145 | 9790 18935
20 - Willits - Ukiah 2274 1 3035 5309
60 - Coaster 935 858 1793
64 - Ukiah to Fort Bragg 390 489 879
65 - CC Rider 1083 982 2065
654 - New Route 65 636 723 1359
74 - Saturday Gualala-Ukiah 106 78 184
75 - M-F Gualala to Ukiah 483 649 1132
95 - Pt. Arena to Santa Rosa 482 509 991
97 - Redwood Coast Regional 260 300 560
Monthly Totals 21589 | 22783 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 [} 0 0 0 44372 0 0




Agenda ltem #5
26-Sep-18

nfla__

Board of Directors Meeting Schedule

Last Wednesday of every month - 1st Wednesday of the month in December
Subject to Change

Video Conference

Date Time Location With Major Agenda Items
2018
July 25 130 Willits only 2018/19 Transit Needs: Willits
September 26 130 Fort Bragg Ukiah 2018/19 Transit Needs: Fort Bragg
October 31 130 Ukiah Fort Bragg  2018/19 Transit Needs: Ukiah
November no meeting scheduled
December 5 130 Ukiah Fort Bragg  2018/19 Transit Needs: Ukiah
2019
January 30 130 Fort Bragg Ukiah 2019/2Q Transit Needs: Ft Bragg
2019/20 Transit Needs: Willits
February 27 130 Willits only Initial 2019/20 Budget Discussion
2019120 Transit Needs: Ukiah
March 27 130 Ukiah Fort Bragg  DRAFT 2019/20 Budget & Claim
April 24 130 Point Arena only 2019/20 Transit Needs: Point Arena
May 29 30 Fort Bragg Ukiah General Manager Evaluation
General Manager Contract
June 26 130 Ukiah Fort Bragg  FINAL 2019/20 Budget




To:
From:
Date:
Subj:

Agenda ltem # 6

MTA Board of Directors

Carla Meyer, General Manager
September 26, 2018

Capital Program: Progress Report

This report is consistent with the capital budget dated June 2018/19

2017-18 Projects Cont.

RouteMatch Fixed Route GPS Dispatching Software $268,613

Action:

7-25-17: The MCOG Board of Directors unanimously voted to provide one-time
excess LTF funds in the amount of $380,000 to supplement the MTA purchase
of Fixed Route AVL.

8-10-17: Contract for MTA and RouteMatch signed, project commences.
Hopeful operational date within 120 days.

8-20-17: RouteMatch Fixed Route AVL, Push to Talk Kickoff meeting
completed; RouteMatch staff to arrive at MTA second week in October for initial
fleet assessment and installation process begins.

10-12-17: RouteMatch staff on-site for fleet assessment and data entry for
fixed route assessment.

6-26-17: Project presented to the MCOG Transit Performance Committee for
review and comment. Sent on to MCOG for approval of use of one-time excess
LTF funds for purchase of RouteMatch AVL and Push to Talk software which
will eliminate the need for continued work with Fisher Communications.
Jan./Feb 18: MTA was contacted by Fisher Wireless who has now updated to
digital radio. In review of their proposal and learning that the RouteMatch Push
to Talk was still a prototype program, MTA contracted with Fisher Wireless to
install digital radio’s in the fleet. The instaliation is completed, the reception is
exceptional. The remaining decision on radio consoles repiacement will be
forthcoming upon review of cost savings and discussion with the MCOG.
However final design on the fare methodology has been agreed to and
installation of the GPS and tablets for fixed route is scheduled for early March,
2018.

March 28, 2018: Due to delay in tablet installation, RouteMatch fixed route
database development, MTA is not expected to go “live” in April, 2018.

May 30, 2018: Ongoing install issues with RouteMatch has pushed the
RouteShout “Go Live” date out until resolution of all issues involved.

June 20, 2018: New server install at RouteMatch this weekend, freeing up
additional space for MTA. In the interim, we are experiencing significant
system stability.

July/August 2018: RouteMatch staff in conjunction with MTA staff worked to
resolve remaining stability issues with system. System stability increased
significantly.

September 13, 2018: Conference call with MTA staff and RouteMatch staff
resolving few remaining issues. Next step in Sept/Oct. will be the development
and ‘Go Live’ for passenger amenity ‘RouteShout'.

September 17, 2018: GM conference call with Teague Kirkpatrick from



RouteMatch to complete final change order and finalize for payment.

Managed IT Care $80,437

Action: The MTA IT system was currently developed by in-house staff and local

vendors. The original server is at maximum capacity is now being backed up by an external
hard drive. Estimated 6 months longevity. Through application for Prop 1B Safety and
Security funds, MTA has contracted for a complete revamp of the IT network to include non-
existing firewalls, off-site backup of data and utilization of fiber optic.

Problems: Awaiting MCOG Board Resolution approval for access to the funds on October 2,
2017, delaying implementation. However, with the project already approved, it is
hoped that after receipt of the resolution, funding will be expedited.

10-02-17: MCOG Board of Directors approved allocation of Prop1B Safety and
Security funds.

10-09-17: Receipt of signed resolutions; grant documents mailed to Cal-OES
Jan 2018: MTA was hit with high tech ransomware and the existing service is
shutdown. Decision on the final vendor for the managed care will be decided
next week. Unfortunately, due to an error at the State Controiler's office arrival of
the Cal-OES approved grant funds could be delayed 2 more months. Staff is
discussing aiternatives and will present to the Board.

March 2018: Three bids have been obtained from IT managed care providers.
MTA has selected Comer Technology Group from Chico, CA for the managed
care. MTA is still awaiting the delayed Cal-OES approved grant funds from the
State Controller's office.

May 30, 2018: Cal-OES funds have arrived, contract with Comer Technology
group has been prepared and awaiting final signatures.

June 17, 2018: Contracts signed, first payment installs to Comer Technology.
Server on order, estimated 4 weeks to delivery.

August, 2018: Comer Technology installed new server and other necessary
equipment. Transition from old server and individual computers begun...project
delayed until completion of Finance Audit (just in case)

September, 2018: installation continued. Expected completion date, October,
2018.

FY 2018/19

Maintenance Fleet Software — Electronic Zonar Pre-Trip Technology $80,437

Action: The current maintenance/facilities software utilized is outdated and no longer
supported. MTA has received Cal-OES funds to purchase new updated maintenance and
facilities tracking software. In addition we will be looking for a maintenance software which
interfaces with Zonar Pre-Trip Technology devices. Zonar is a wireless device that scans
chips at various locations on a bus in live-time for pre and post trips. The data is stored on the
Cloud and is accessible instantly.

September/October 2018: Research maintenance/facilities software programs,
request three (3) bids and select. Zonar is sole-source procurement as it is the



only technology vendor of this type.
Dispatch Radio Console Replacement

Action: The current MTA Dispatch consoles are large and outdated. After solicitation of
maintenance software and Zonar pre-trip devices, MTA will purchase new digital consoles if

budget aliows.

Replacement Fixed Route Cutaway Buses (3)

Action: MTA will replace buses 726, 727 and 730, currently in use for fixed route.

Ukiah Senior Center Accessible Mini-Van

Action: MTA will handle procurement process for the Ukiah Senior Center for purchase of
one accessible mini-van. This van will be utilized to resolve some of the FY 17-18 unmet
needs.



AGENDA ITEM #7

2018-19 UNMET NEEDS REQUESTS

Date City Requestor Service Requested
2/28/2018 Willits Saprina Rodriguez Brooktrails
2/28/2018 Willits Saprina Rodriguez Sherwood Bus Transportation
2/28/2018 Willits Saprina Rodriguez Laytonville/Covelo Service
2/28/2018 Willits Saprina Rodriguez High School Service
2/28/2018 Willits Saprina Rodriguez Willits Senior Center Request more LTF funding
2/2//2018 Fort Bragg Jim Tarbell #60 Route on Sundays
B E bi at Seni i
4/16/2018 Ukiah Facebook p::kstop on E Gobbi at Senior mobile home
#20 Forks and Cal i i
5/19/2018 Ukiah Facebook to run to Forks and Calpella in evening and
on Saturday.
More evening transportation from Ukiah to
willi h kand
5/19/2018 Willits/Ukiah Facebook Yillits to get people home who work an
disabled persons workshops and meetings past
the last bus.
i d df
6/5/2018 Connie Chan onone Add more service on Talmadge Road for those
that cannot walk very far.
. . Saturday Route #20 that provides service
6/6/2018 L David Facebook
e e acenoo between Redwood Valley and MC.
-8AM R R
6/9/2018 Jason Morash Facebook 3;3:" LR AN IR
6/27/2018 ey Meeting CB;:'sgte services between Gualala area and south
Reconsider a pulse system at the Navarro
6/27/2018 Lloyd Cross Meeting Junction for buses to Fort Bragg, Ukiah, Gualala

and Point Arena.

10




AGENDA ITEM #8

TO: MTA Board of Directors

FROM: Carla Meyer, General Manager

RE: Fiscal and Compliance Audit-Single Audit
DATE: September 26, 2018

As required by the Transit Development Act (TDA) Statutes and California Code of
Regulations, PUC 99245, each transportation planning agency, transit board and county
transportation commission shall ensure that all claimants to who it directs the allocation
of Local Transportation Funds (LTF) shall submit to them an annual certified fiscal audit
conducted by an entity other than the claimant.

During August, 2018, the firm of R. J. Ricciardi, Inc., Certified Public Accountants
performed the FY 16/17 fiscal and compliance audit for MTA... ...

Recommendation: Review, approve and accept FY 16-17 Fiscal and Compliance
Audit,



' DRAFT |

|_ 9/21/2018

1
|To be used only for managemeni discussios |
flpurposes; engagement is incomplete, !hli
|=draf1 is subject to final review and possiblu|
Jrevision.

L : ; |

MENDOCINO TRANSTUT AUTHORITY

ROARD OF DIRECTORS & MANAGEMENT REPORT

JUNE 30, 2017

12







P AGE

Report on Interna! Conrrnls

Reguired Commoarications

14




Directors

d of
L'ters

To the Bozr
Mendo

Authonn

it

jatiy el

Me

5

CITCIs ¢

At

5"

e

Firbanio a1

sipies pu E

erforrms

\

F

an sy

I planning 2

ce wit

e

Gris

e

‘o

E procedires

i

£

C.L'.‘:.g.":'..’.'

posts for

e

stzrerments b

TET smaay Byae

rar

:
co

W

W,

L. THp
O
Ao b}
S ¥ I
Gn 'l
PV
8§
ren W
£ -
Loyt e
[ S Ne
oo e
1D i
[Ca g =
w D Y
2o e
o i It
O b
R
* e

T

3

ress of s mrernal corrrol,

GELSSIGE O
kS

B

ose of ox
; =
re effees

»
e

pusy
an

Hk
-

y Trarsis

fendnging

A6 U o

[N

=
WLl

ency

N

ot

r

zeopted

1]
iy oA

]

ennny

ine

3eNic

[N
L
E
b
b
G
W]
<

X
Es o
"o
P,
B
= M

v B
.
o
]
-2
o
e
il Ly
W
=
i
& ..
Bl L
= =
o —
[
ULoow
o
e
=L
© g
L e
[
- K4l
S
[P
J\.w (Y]
=
w0
SR |
ow

SiT

G
v by

H
wiment of the

ok
ol )
] o
v

H

preee |
REUTIA

rngeaph and wod'd 5

SLE T ¢

Joweaboesses . s

s F Panreng

SR N

inlersa

LI

e

A

weaknosses

T

L

PN

LB}

5

#reaee b pay

(Y

=

I
o
s U
ETE S
P
gy =8

\

cied wosth

that we zorad

N e

Mz

i

AN, ATE T

!‘."ﬁ-‘.‘.‘.?.g‘.‘

st cenmunenss o further
\lithorninv

i
v

LT
ey

yendar

i

3R

[

v and cthers

utho

suoAu

i Tran

-

i

4
[y

Ine

-

rd
d Public Accou

R} Reee

Cer

is

t.
w
o

L

sy ba
Tk

fael, Cabforma

n Ra

Sa

15



To tre Board of Directors
M:::"-:)c;nn Trazs: Authoeny
Ukask, Californiz

We have zuted o R ncin! stetements of Mesducinn Transie Authe

Professiong siand

provide yeo with the Slowing inform
! ! B

Qur Respo: Accepied Audiizng Standa

Ve srnred e standasds, i< o
pen and pr SLATCrACTIS fre

free of manc wed pzcounting

prinzipies Be ) sig ceausn we did nns
Sk . . 3 :
}"rf-f)m1 7 dersed evatunation of & IFRNSACHOMY, erg 5 2 sk Thar 1mereris imiseonirimerts tnay paie aad nor he

s prerof v and we cansdored

sach nn-eeeal

"f:"i"" Preose Aoy Such sonsidelanine s were
Sprovide o assarance covoers nE

h L
controh

Qualitotive Aspects of Accounting Practices

Marsgoiver: s resoonanle for 2be stwchon and wee o sattounivg podors Inoaccordonce wioh e terins
ol eur ergagoesen er, we wiloadvise menaguimn: = ,;:v:n il 55 af accouniing policrs and e
i : freaes wsed 9y Meadanine 3

\(‘CIL."-': ny CxINMIFIns gre 2an i 'ng’?ﬁ ANt o tire JARSIE ﬂ:’?'.'-.:'.ﬂ stareinoiis P.LI:-T'L'C. Dy Imsrnpeimy

b

s glal thtlre Sy onts (;:'r'p"'

s arowledpe 2nd experience #

i e Deslz peanoial stz

NmAICs RTE paric. darh se

el EXTICIC Vo oveinar

wmaRies

a5 2 whune e rmost sorsimoe

. puelasset bves ard deprecinion expense,

: i distiosure of compensared absences,

v assumptions for pensieon;

x afivesiments 2nd finzncisl instruments

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no sigruficant diffizuities in dealing with management in perferming and completing our guds

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standarcs require us io accurnutate all known and bkely misstatements denzified during the audi, orlser
than those that ase trivial, and comenunicate them o the approprate level of management. There were ne matertal
imusstatemnents detzcted as 2 result of audit procedures

16




T'e the Board of Direcrors
Mendoeing itarv' Authoriy - Page 2

Disagreements with Management

Fur purposes of this fetrer, pm*"-sa'"--.a stargderds define 2 d:sag:cc:‘.".er-.: With maragensent 2s s finrancie AIToUANRE
repering, or audiing matter, whttrer or ro resolved e our sans ction, that could be sgnificent 1o the basis
“report We are plessed o rcper: Ea n2 such disagreements zeose Guring the

¥

INANCIE: STRIEMONTS O 0 2y

course of ocurau

Management Representations

! . .
We rmave vecussted certas topresentarions frore ems FEoN 3

letrer received o 130 |

Mznagermeznt Consultations with Other Independert Accountants

GME (RS, 'T;‘isgl-mcn‘ MiFL d.c:'.:i* woocorsult with other #

licazion of &

ATt certain siteanons 1§ 2 CUTIRITRTION 1nvoves ?.2

surdar o chiming 2 ¢ second G
pringicle 1o Mesdosmo Trassi Auhes Ay besic firancs! siarements o s durers At

af e e

ctessiors! siandargs teguire ine consuabing zoceaniant
reizvasr 2o o oooy krow CGEC, TRCrC were no osech

, f
calr-m uf e sehtng princisles and aue g osandn et
) 2 ranst wrnesns aodiors However tese dlscussiane
. .
occwrrea 1 rhy merms! cousse of oo pes casnng rela '-:"'-P AN VLT IUSRUNAns wore nnt owocoecdition ta eyus

retrnhion

Ocher Vatters

We zppled copram binired pinredares o Merag = Yicussion and Aealvers

e hesie Smsncil sizeimerss W N o e she RS and duoner ea eSS Lh DR ot b

s
Tt
o

i

¥

i

for the tnforpeanion and vse o ¢ ol Direcroes of

1oane e st pere et e, vavd Dopeyvearn

BRI W I TS WIS r e 'g';"""'/z"' {1 él ' ik
5 l; .

orsre thei these spreified paries

17




Mendocino Transit Authonn
AMANAGEMENT REPORT
Fortie Year Ended Junz 30, 2077

1) Sgnateze Stamp

¢ 2ucl we nuied tae signatare stemp for Merdancin v (the Aanorniy)
lendacing chans forma s 10 tee cusindy of gre of e Vathonn's sccoururg clevks 7
not have access wothe soonuriing records

T DPTY NI |
s T oty cheeks szt £t

o

drum {ooms o sgned by althorized chock stigrers

1 bore oweerr nn oo PN Vear ‘bSCf‘ Jhiahs

18




| DRAFT |

| 9/21/2018 t

[To be used only for management discuss orj
|purposes engagement is incomplete thg
draft is subject to final review and POssibly |
|ren5|on il

MENDOUINO TRANSIUT AUTHORTTY

UKIAH, CALIFORNIA

BASIU FINANCIALS

JUNE 30, 2017

TATEMENTS




TABLL OF CONTENTS

. ) . '
Menagemen:'s Discussion ara Analvsss

Starerments of Net Posinon - Proorereey bund - Berpen 110

Mtatement, of Revenuss, Fxneases and Changes i
Furd Net Paostinr Propeivan Fund - Prrenrs

arF EIMonts [l'.r (.‘:’:4.;.- "'.'.:[.-‘i't'i; J“".-'J =TI i .'|.|..: PRIEINTISE
1 f RS
\I-.-.L\ Ly i R ..I?... H.F._C‘._'.‘._’:...H'

Revuwsed happlemesial Infennaran

raparnenzie Share of Net Pension Lizbiln {Asses)

Hepu

< red Regudinans oo e { o
o T N ;
LlALveiTinnt Acyomdtee A IESRNOM [Petperiions

foiioas it ol e, I B il £

)

nwd
ok

i
i




SDENT AUDITORS REFPOR]

d of Dircciors
gocma Trarsi Autnorin

BIrivilivs arc e major fund of

W have aud:red

Mendooine Trem
Theste basc Fn

i the rable of comens

wiv's mamagemnent (o

1

Mana agement's Respunsb
Managuinoin: s respatisibie

r-

~
v
w
1
™
r
n
-
-~
[a ™
n
n
=
z
3

sration of thuse fOnancial st

f Nimesice, oy

and mainiesance of intermsl tred : : preparation and fair presentation of fsanciz! siatements that are
. . .

e oinese feznclal siatomo asedd on n.._' aadin, Wi corducred ow audis

B {0 ENDIUSS Dnivon
zadLing s:m:l:*

Mot ade Reuuirsmenss for Cehiforos S proal Dhstrices 11 cse standa -c‘~ reguire that we pia

S
i

3
¥ BUnaraly “"CEP'L‘L‘ e Unntest “eries of Amwricz, sied ke St (,rm:rmc:s
sian and perform the
ander te obrats reasomble ascurane ahow \\'ﬂuhq the fingnend starements 2re free from marenz! meesstenen:

A onihis mcntees per "t“-"-} proceaures ooontan adi eedease gonas the ameants and disclosaros 1 the finarcl

RNy LRe pratetiures seievien depens oo the adior's lutdgmen:, wchudin axsvssmiciv of the pske of
matenial susstatoment of tie Bz sel starconenes, wocrines dos e Baud o ceror FIsR PssessmrnTs, the

s preparation ard fo prL f ol ﬁ~g.-.-1, STRNCITEA

I . E
o dnw Gareanslanes, bt i e i |

b tiwsg waddn proncde e el vt w

S '}'c effectiveress of o

i l} L.\_n?'.‘.'.\.\l.l.;-_( dt

At eriY'Y _mhnal connvel Accurds h,,.\ we L\p_:n neosuch opaaet s audn /lse

: gL cemrrecn ,'\' uT Tl LT L .
el .:Eu eVl :., tne appeopneictess of z2cosnnmng policies wed 2nd the veasomabioness of sipifican: accounting
cstumates made Dy manzgeinees: s wel as cveloring the av Ppresentanos of the france! sisements

W belove that fhe suds cvidence we kave obmined s sufficient and Rpprepria o provide @ bass for our e

ve present fairly, i oall motenal respocts, the respective
nejor fund of Mendaeine Transic Authoriny, £s of June 30,

9
1
L
0
9
5
5t
&
-3
o=
- ore
.
oo
4] ]
23
o 5
1
v g
-
[+
N W
Yo
3
o 3
" ~
3
n +
— w
T
AN
ft
wr -1
o
-
3 i
ta.
-
S' o
L] r>
? o
2

ctive charges 17 financial posiiton and, where aprhicably, ca
nded o accordance with a2 scouiting principles generally accepied 1 the United Srares o

atters

Repoit aa Susimnized Comporative [afaaetion

We have previcusiy auditzd Merdecing Transic Authorin’s 2016 fnancial statements, and ous repor: dated Mazch 24,
2017 expressed an unmodifisd op!:*.zn on those audited financial stziements Ir our opinion, the summarized
comparative mnformaticn presened herein as of and Ffor the vear ended Jure 30, 2016, 15 consistent, 1n all material
respects, with the audited Anancia! statements from which i: hes beer derived

M



Board of Directars
Mendncing Transt Au thory - Page 2

Regurized Supplessentary [nformation
\c..auw..ns principles general'y aczepied in the Urared Stazes of Amesics reau re trat the manzgements discussio
and znalysis on pages 3-6 and the r".’.]‘...i!'l'.'"‘ sepplemenitany mformanion on pagts 22.23 be presemted ¢

he basic fin ancial stalersents Such '".‘crr-.ul.,.., although not g pastz af the

ke Governments!

Tingy

v Bzsic fnercizl statermunis, 15 required
ards Boerd, who considers i 1o ke a= essential part of fnancizl reporing £

L Hia -3

i
t Aeceour
i a7 2DRroprizie operational, ccanomic, o h..s:.')'.ca. contevs We have
red prozedores worhe recuired sopplemerary information in azcordance wish sud g siandards gerers!

ne Urited S ? tonsisted of ingaies of management abo. the metiads of

3
Tation and :wr.}“rrug H N tormaTion oy

nancie Afimens,

consistengy with mansgement's FESDOTSES 6 oL
ather kn:m’icdgc we ::b:?_ ned durlng oue sude
:
1

ANV BSSWANICY nn the 'I':f()’_':‘.".#.'.'(!!' DeCRLAL Ine !L'-"r"'_!g_':_:,

EXPICSS A0 OLINOT of pregvide a7y fasliance

22



Mendooing Transi - \urhorine
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30,2017

—
=-
e
—
[
e
——
-
o
9]
-
iy

This sectinn of Mendecing 'I'rar:si: .-\L:!zc:rl.ty's (the Authesins) PEIAL STRTEMEnTS PILsenls MAragemen:'s
:

overview and znalisiz of ke azipinies of the crgarcyation for the fiser }.'::.r erded fune 30 2017 The
Autnonn s 5 foin? Towers .-\ at “entered nic by the Counny of \I""u::';-_'::; and the fous incarporeted cities

{I': '|"_IJ (-"‘l : '_
disabled \\c:
tinarc:a? SR0

13 with specialized servizes for semiors and the

. nn A s iy S 1 T )
t3 consider tl.e wformeton presenied hore mocomnotas wir

cinid sraremens
AR PTL.\.J

ceepied in e Urired Sts

tos of Nimerica

e eguired Fm.r-: P Hevures, Expeises

srelide the Siatement of N

auvd (O ¢ Stzterner: of Cash to Hasic Firancia: Sratciments
AN secnions oo ocosidn sglibm ot ange g emting of e fnasoes) prorair of the
§
R
casseiy 2o vabiines wstng th wzcrual be soaf areounane £ o oof the saeimene P

- Ffererce henween the o classtficarons s represenied 28 v o Prosnon il secnon of the siaremen: wdena fies

neial prsiiorn eF S Acthose, ss g

mrjar categores of restictnns on these assers znd refle s rhe avergh fie

whole

WHLCT LUt 1ar ven wsing tre accrusl basts of

ACCOWHINE ced o oreases o decresses in o PO are repsited 25 sooT an e o ndeiy g

3 PR . . E '
LA Ll Eugritnan 020 1y P Mk owEntn Do N oL SRV RLAMIEON WIS LD RNGUITUL, G BUEeT 2 Wid
7 ‘ = fi e ey
‘.'.a.!‘.'!!‘g H b M.r] VURD IR VORI C]'F..";E‘CS S CAEE Tl e i E Farave prenae el

fiows zad eurdiows of cash, soimmavized b OV opuizling nov capral e and velaced

ned mvesimg Aciih Tle diree: mmethod was Usen 1o G oprepnre g W AT ThEAns

olanounis were presenzed for the vess's activities

Slpicments



IR

Analynzal Overview

Curren: pssets
7 '
LEpital asdeis

Pogel asgee

=

M1 mnNIge

investet 1 ganeal aasers

Unrestricres

Restricred

Fota, ngr posings

Zrferred oo Py af resparegs

Mendoeins Transit . uthority

LS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
june 30, 20;7

By
<5
wn

S 2578052

5%
(*h)
o
NI
L

o
4

..

.
[V}
e
o

X
L
2

.._.
hn
~

i
b
i

J3G, ' 48 [,2!2 721
e .
e h208947 - Y83

gt
W [on
By

s : 2%

[
w3
4

L :

11,735,400 2,347 400y V3,380,00
1,675,987 13303 16733

18,564 iB.i53
S 13308 %4 30340346 2. AN
LT oo S, 208 240 1. eef o 30 B s dereepse of $2.03 G0

1 New Postes dsoreSeeted n phe

riys ot posinon s af Tuse 3, 5

g3 heid with the Mesdoees

* Accouenis paveble of $218,733, 2nd conrac payakle romling $923,397

«  (iner bizbiines comprise deferred reverue of $730, 735, cempepsated ahsenzes of 5199378 -
FS104,434 and ney prusion babiiny of 51,738 913

azcrued bandiy for selfinsurance of §

¢ INet position invested 1 capltal assets of S| 1,332,400, representng the Authenn's mvestimen: i
; & !

cansal assers

' estricted riet positior iotalng $7,631 may only be used for specialized warsporietion program

SEQvices

* Unresencred net position, the part of net positicn that can be used to finance day-to-day operations
and capital without censtraints established by debt covenanis or other legal requiremenis or
restzicuions The Aathority had $1,673,282 of unrestricted net position as of June 30, 2017

-4.




Mendocino Transit Author n

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND

ANALYSIS

Juans 30, 2017

T ) ke Authosnn bave decrezsed this vear by S336.717 This cles
Assets, which increased by $330,862 and Property, Piant, and FEouinmers, wiuck '*"'r:ase: overs 338 J"“
ALTES IRTE IRCTEASCE TRIE vers, 15 Uhhs oost by 53 6,216, menly as the resih of tae norease i- the net pot

3 vres

e

oy GASB Siatement No, 68

vired

Unrestricied Net Posttior has incrersed By STZLELL The overa cratge v Ner Posinos 5z decreast of
3343 900 ress trg =g June 30, 2007 balance af 813,255 vis
Comparaive Anslysis of Curren: arg Paior Year Agtivives gad B ances
Takle ?
Changes 1n Net Posgiorn
Trorease
A

LS e/mne
Oprerating rove o g S 813,01+ ) LEDRIRE s
Opurai IR UNDU NS 3, o

Nerop

LY

rﬁfi".g 1mcome

‘(/_5

43,926,228

Dreroasy)
bBorw ren

)::.('
3, '5”

30

f

Ri1 344
Dt

Note ]
Naoe

7

a2
238

:-.u_-.@.ﬁ-h-

S (% )

:\I:}:‘ H oA '—l:r"e’ - i f}‘(‘ PRI - POy et - - Y Q £ ] \: -‘,)

' ) = DRY LAt T o SR HEA R R4 o LAY Ny -
SN RTIIY (( \“ '-‘ii..‘) % = L e = whi - L T e
As Uanic 7 oanove shows, S8 3,692 00 130 o0the Muhoriy’s fises! (err 20017 revin o came frown operating
R enes wiien cansitol of foress cane smrones charees arh srmseraera, sed Semevime {Tainn pErUChatT
ard 3-.689.220, o0 Ra%a come S no- o Mg Tvenies sues as lngal ranspeiai e fuads sapiral gramus aned
planning grams,
kY ¥ . - g
Ay 1 L -\.I..'( L 1 L Y LS e t" ~
o DS IACITAST It GRIRINE oXpISny 1eliles (o uimieass asgncieed  with ad TOUSIATOE AN

TANSROUIANON Costs

Nete 3. ke nos apeanng reventes (expenses) decrease was volated o ¢ decresse in TApIAL GEELTS

Capiial Assets

As of jine 30 2017, tee Autheny’s imvestment 1n capial assens
deprecinzion) The Auwtheny added $262.606 of facik ties, vehuzles ::-:'. £
informanian or the Authoriny's capital 2ssets can be fc:ma in Nore

Statements

Debt Administration

was SHL335,500 [ner of accumulated
L!.;
1

ipmen: 1 £scal vear 2017 Addinene

15 the Notes 1o

The Avthonry does not wilize long-term debt to fund operanons or Erowth

25




Mendocine Transi; Authoriny
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Junie 36, 20:7

Economic Outlook and Major Initiatives

——
~

nznos7l planming is based on specific assumptions from r

and husrotica! growth patterss in the com

Authoring wils continue

fanagenent practices to deliver roe highest qualiny of senvice 1 the cirve=s of the s1c

WA

Contacung the Authority’s Financial Mana ernent
! g

Lhas set of Basic Futancal Statements o neended
sverview of the Authornds &

3] \ ranses. {Qaestioss
Vitrorin, 240 Pant Read, Ukeal €0 65483

Wmonn s 0 2ppears or ke briance sheer red

eye over expentduures and remain oo

The

fsca

(4




Mendoaine Transe: Authorin
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
Propnetary Furd - Enterprise
June 30, 2017

MWk Compararne Tosals as of June 33, 203 %)

ANSETS 217 2.6
Courrert gssors
Cashoarz mvesrments 5 179040 8§ IR R
Rusteired canh and imvesimers 1Bl 356+ 333,317
\eegurts recorealie YRR 14 287 73R
{Fzants reseivahn o AEhan? IR
[=vertanes & 68>
EpA tems _ 2.'1'__5_-:.;
furt our = 3.E3n08d
{lamine vssots
361,787
ZER P H B SRR GS

Ciroenn babykes

RTINS

I3 [}
LOATTATTS t"l:'n;'.’i C

Pofirred revene 33530 383 440

Conpresaser ghsonces PRI Rt 3370
f

Avcraes aaininy for sl sesorance 154 434 LT

Tum coerent hai

Netpeasion nahiin B L 338942 dig,7ii

Total hat

linges 2

DEEERRED INFILOWS

OF RESOL?

Deferred vnflows of resouzces 235,187 308 734

Tota! net posinen 5 i3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial staternents

-7




Mendocine Transit Authonn
STATEMENTS OF REVENLUES }:}&PE.\'SES
AND CHANGES IN EUND NET POSITION

Proprietary Fund - Fnzerprise

For the Year Knded June 34, 201°

p, E s e b
MWtk Comperative Tosals for the Yeer Foded June 30, 2 RS
2007 206
UipeTanng rovenues
Farnx ) -)J.:}lf:lj_. S GU8. 300
WOnnaBie service comiract TR 67312
Crariers G.7% 32,31

Banoma Counte participaion LB 3 (32873
Tnme revenoes Bid L4 BHS 118
Liprratog expunses
Transporation TaU| nRl
tersporanon  speosked MR L0

Mabiny neanagenen:

Depreciaiion

w3)

G fumo 2 aah N PR 3 E
Lo transporionon fund osnesininod L2 B W2 3005
TR UATSID ASsIAnCU T3 73,00
Ulprooing grant SRR T3L 0830 25

Pmn-.t.ke; grants 34908 by 83

\

10,110 0z

evenues (expenses) 4703503 = 750,251
VR + s Tk Wit oA B becdylill

f:l:angc 1 Ret posiien 2439065 318,37C
Ne: pesitier. - beginning of pencc 13,433,145 13,134,77¢
Net position - beginning of peiicd restated 13,433,146 13,134,776
Net pasition - end of pencd ) 13208245 S 13,433,146

The azcompanying notes are 2n integral part of these firancial statements

-8-



Mendacin: Vransn Authege
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Propnetary Fund Enterprine
Forree Year Ended June 30, 2017
AWarh Compargive Torals for the Year Faded [

FELY IO Feoim (2 HER TR TR EHAEN

Raternts fross cuttinm e

P e

[EF T
feanpphor
Ao G L Tvs

Nt vaer peonadid sed) B s g s v

A Se s frier awncm o) g L TR

L N L HY WA PR o HL TS
Limr g giae
B R R Rl e

Fio

B U T TE Y
S LY S NN
DR HE LTS

Moetsom e Dby

rveded fan e g ol HRERE PURTRE PR EDE I

ot ot s Fensvt e gl e pgad S e Witk i s
i d R s I

Sl oo et reatla

(AR
(F i LB T L L DL VAT RSO
ATRERL freoomdead ettt g s, e e LI TT T
: [ RTE IR ERTIN Y PRI
[ R T Y | 6T
Mot n ki prndod et e 573
R T T O R I T RR TN [ [SFIC TN BTN fise W3
: AR IR NPT g ot e 395,20
Camrasd cer e 1t USRI AT A HEETY §
[Tt
R, pregd o g oy LAY BUER S Ta R, Frpesl fp g "
LU N T TR T L TN | S TTTR T PO
Dl gavran fhoss! % 1 5 ERTANLE
RO PR ety Tt e 1 b ey G s e b e
= VRO LI

B0~ 0 Corlany ety it |!'i"l! LISl

e

Fropand tosis

orcseed s oveea

oo poythle and weenuls 134,42,
+.470

LR T,
ER R
SEIOR FAUR
BRI

592,734

bevracd bl Bar s s leane
ihforecd e flow

Ploiered oo,

Moot pensaw b

Lennpensateg absonces

o adusemanes

Noteask providod used, by oporatey 1eivin s 5 (3,777,23¢; 3 {38797

st ond ievsnmoets 3 LR

o

Phel 923

—— LSS St F R R W
Vintad casiy wad tash wgues 2bonts 5 197975 3 2,135,240

Kostrcted cash and 1y wszments wath fise ! Ayt

The accompanvisg notes are an inregral part of these financial statements

D



NOTE 6

Mendacins Trans:t Authorn
NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fune 30, 2017

Mendozics Transt: Awhernin (i Authord was fnrmeg

errered inin by the Counny

Jomt Powers Agrecmer
TCOIPOTELeG ilies in the Coann In Apnl 1576, the \uth: 1 organ e pilo:

3
&
-
=
A
“

—
~
&
g

puses tod on Julv | 578 was esmablisked 25 - pormacer: Erogram throvgn
- I (3

W pairis, tar withoprionty for senois and handicapped The Speairioed Transnoration

z
t

Fowers Agreemen: Tne Aoy 2lso zdmuusters five senin: TRISpariztor BrograTs that car oo
;
a

nd the General Public Transpotietion Senvices are accsurtee for as separan

1
¢ Acthorny dee e ther Efferent fave rann e priicments and methods of providhin

services The Smecghued Transportzron Services are provided undey zartracts, whie the CGoporsl
Publiz Transnortation i3 2 Ieanse nperation

[ pccordance wib Seonns GEHD of Voucle © of the irenspotaten Deveionmmers Ao tse Aarmerens,
fas been desigrered Corsobdn ransprstion Jeevice Vgenay oy Meodosine Cooncll o

Gevemmenis = aztordzoce witl the azrine Pan adapied i ot

Covernmren: Code

miEsermment fovas ac? Lse tne acerle! basie of
. .

are recorded when earred and evporses 1o reensded a0 e
3

MRS T SeaVITes, resol Tom exchange transacions
f

iachange transaciiors ae those 0 whick Lacly marhy

AR, 0.‘"'}’?-.'.".'1".'-:g TV Enaes, SLOI 3 sUDsies ang mvehien

ﬁ(l:’\'.‘.\'C]';F.:".gC ZATSRCHIO NS oY Eﬂ:lﬂ&‘:}

programs witlh & comdimation

sevenues Thos, ot

followed oy general revenie

The basic financwl statements hace been prepared n confonmin with U8 generaiy accepied
accounting principles, and as such, include amounts based on informed estimares znd vdgiments of

i
maragement with consideration given to materiality. Actual resuits could differ From those estunates

C Lash ang Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents with an onginal matusiny of 90 days or less are wused in prepanng the
statement of cash flows because these assets are highly biquid and are expended 1o aquidate Liabilizies
arising during the vear.

- 10 -

30




dMendoctna Transit Authorin
NOTES 10 FINANCIAL S'L‘\II.'\I Is
June 30, 2017

SO 2 SUMMARY QF SIGNIFIC,

I'T‘:\'{:!';TC‘-"\ FURTOSCIES Vel [Erts zad vanous refatec mElnrials DA mave b'.:c!"l SIZTLLL &Y Conss

[}
Zeterruned 'c} tnc firsstin frstout methed The cosis of invertotios are rocorie L A3 CXDENSTS Wher
o

consemed ainey tnan wher purchased

i Prepad Coss

Prepare cosss ave ealtulzied ane adiusted st vear-ond o properis charge furds ir the perind berefired
] 1l A 1

recordey at histerical cost Deoreciannn is provided on the srragli-ling
to ¥ v rs Deprecizton expunse was $1,159, 1 83

Property and egogpment e
Basis over the esiunated csefo) Hees of the assets o
2 H

Al eaping’ assers ove SLUDD . d with 2 wsefu hite of more than one

2

for the yvear ended june 30
vear are cantralued

U Cempensated Absenges

3

[}

‘.

Vacation b imavees azeset vazatne a: the e of . hour for o eny 26 hours worked The secry
Prowr forteonm 10 33 be,ars aficr foour vears of service, and 1 howr & tevery (3 hoars ﬂ';:'

MCTLASES i
severveans of sence Brwiovees Loor cligthie for vacanen berefite afrer teey have completed sy
mantts of empionmer

4

Siek jeave bh £ sicx o ve st e rate of §onour for even 20 hours workea, and breome

. oy by P

'

e Bt sigh Tes Loec B fler e hase waenploned three nplimient | SR
$ s E enen PR T [P A T i e

lecelve 28! pav 0 vatang  ame for siek leave sooruals 10 cxcoss of 94 noLrs, 2t the rein of 235,

st Babvalae o) accned viczion was $1314 3w Jviane 35, 2087, wnd 2.'5"-.: ::i' the v of proraesd seoa
leace was 387733 a1 Jume 30, Z007, and are recorded | ; i l

i
4
compensaied absences lebiin was §.99,228 at June 30, 201

I Aczcouns Paveble and Acgaed 1 LXPLuYEs

Azcounts pavable end acerzed expenses constst of 2ccounts peveble acd pavrol relazed acorunls

e .-\”'Itn*in' tzports wnformation regarding tts net pesition and activities a;cordm; to three classes ©
net pasiion: wvested in capiial assets, restricted and unrestricted A & cescripion is as follews:

Invested in Capiral Assers: This amount constsis of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation
Restricted. The porion of net pesition that 15 restricied as to use by the terms and condinens of

agreements with outside parties, governmental regulations, laws, or other restrietions that the Authoriy
cannot unitateraliy alter These principally include funds received for specialized service contracts.

Lnrestnicted The portion of net position that 1s not restricted from use.
S 11 -

£}




NOYTE 2.

ST .

Mendocino Transit Authorin
NOLES LO FINANCIAL ST
June 35, 2017

ALAMARY OQF SIGNIFICANT A

Verugie Replacement Reserve

Gaveraments miorzir : ron-vemicly rep rRET restive Fose,

~ Ia
for tne benefit o tre Authory The fund Balance or Jume 34,2007 was 3338573

N BReferred Qutfiows sad Inflows of REs0urens

Parsuget 1w GASE Smiemens Moo 53, Painito! Repocting of Defecced Oty sf Resawies, Defeivel nflsin of
Reswains ome Net Pocetior, 2o GASE Statereer: No Gz, Ttemi Prosgpnch Repoited w: izots onet | Tl ldee,

e Authonty reeognives deferred Gutfiows s i flows of resouices
I3

I athiliier 1o fssers

wiil soimetimes ropont g SLRAUATE Sochnn for
:

oresearces 15 defred ss 5 oenng

5
n'
-
~
L1
=
-
=
w
%
-
n
.
.

[a)
~
P2
-1
"
=
o
=
i

premstiinn byoie goven

i wdinition te babiities, the Siatemen: of Net Postion gl SUIMLIUTS TORUIT £ osoparate secnon Sor

duterrest antlows of riinurses A defuned infloer € Tesnuees % defined s oae roquostiien of me

vt fav vhe Authinei thars applicalic o = Farure ke g puviod

T Penstons
Fuar purpn I TN T Y i sl Sy of resnscos el

Thopensuts and p'_‘l!.\".:jl'- LRfresre Ir, il .'\'.I'i'i!':'__\.h

5

Crlifareis Public Farplovee Rewv, o

to/deductions

1 beer deiermng

& on !

frovn the Plans

TREEE NI

LRI B s B AR 14 [EEER P LR e s
| 3 erarpinm e wdale ploun Foaogegefye s g DRI T 2o rereyetersd o
'L:U".E‘!T./.L'd whier gor and paval W accoresnoe with e bonefe terems lavestimenss are Thpnrien a

fant v aloe

-

arsist of the follawing:

o
%

13
o

The Authonn maintains 2 ¢ash and investraen: peclwin the County T'ne Couny aliocates inrerest 1o
the vanoos funds based upern th

The zverzge montnly cash balances The Awherin's cash on deposit witk
the Coungy Treasun ar June 30, 2017 was $1,381 396

Ciedit Rusk Carnving Amount and Market Value of Invesiments

The Authority maintains specific cash deposits with the County and paricipates o the external
mvestment poo! of the County The County 1s restricred by siate code 1 the types of invesiments 1t
tan make

Bdf




~
[

L

Mendocine Transt: Auth Ty
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STAT il.\III.\' S
June 35,2007

CASIT AND INVESTNENTS fconciidea)

= nh & F g
cernificates of depus MMYICAl panoy A sendars
.\1:::::.‘.3"5 Commerer Fape RLTOIC, BATKUTS' RCCEDIZUCUS, renlroiase
TURSLTET S IRVESimen? i
| S . BeE M g i gy 020 =

Ve bume 30 LY, the \uchonne’s cash with tie Colen Prezsoren os stated g fav ol
! [} I k = o 4 b -y = A
value ofodne pool shases 15 he O N tmal rray b withaiz vn i dereemingg on a

1,

Sasis, which s differes Sear the B vaive of o duthannds gosion w the poal

market valoe of [{u¥, .':‘ :h:~ srhory's cash an de rnsie o Brstoros desd maoer EREL DOTes Wi

ings and o waorations o plodge Eovuenimaeant secur
8
~

of 1307 oY e tupnst as colalers for these depos s Under Cabfores §aw ll..\ co'l

B4 v
the Varvonn s meme and o jracet! abesd of EENCTA WoRsTLton e \.:."'.::"'\ frgs

@ portion o1 mesits covered By federal depusiinn msuiance

it o parfolie wits Tose some e gl of oy value due ot s renl oo
Soms s repay s dell Vs s moasure? by e asvignment of g

siap. eal r:'i*‘g Grgattwanon e faeg \geaoy Tovestmen: |

SRS CURNS Th LS SO I R, )

vot {nde Inere are mo meesimierts e

O s ""?' l'"PI-.\"ﬁ\ B Do \uinonmy VeI f}'.“: gre reguied e14

tasclosey

i s S
Che Awhonny, whose mvesuments 7:e he'd S the Loany, e velonn

=3

wlich 5 reguiaieg by the Uslifornn Goverrment Code vade
State of Tebfomiz The G valae of the Auzhorin's tees

aco “'.m-'.'ru:g fnanoal stztements and simoun
al pmn ed by LATEF for the catiee 1A
p::r:"::Eo) \o balance av a'lfblc for withdrawal
' owhiz }* 2re re o.rd d oo an ernortived cost basis

Restricted and Desionared Cash and : Eouivalenss
The Authoriry segregates certain cash and ecuivalents thar have
restricrions s to thewr nses

The Authont 1s required under the rerms of specializec service conlacts 1o segregate 2ad mainlzin
17

certain funds The balance of these funds at June 3%, 2017 wa s 183,364

- 13 -

33



~TS

niens

v
M

Add

hor
wing

B

il

iransi Aut
fth

ANCIAL STATL

June 30, 2017

endocing
COTSIST O

M

e~
o«

]
-

Faeilin

]

4_?.:_;3 b (?_u

’s

ft

)78

B4

Y

y

$1,347

3%

L2330

i
P L

fucl

CLimmen?

,BR
age e

Kadwos
Reverneo ve

Cin

™
=
o~

1
3

7

3
CIMCUTs

\Y|

'
L

hadlen

1

LYy reauce

s folows:

oy
7

f senvice

warize

.
&
i
o
i
c

-~

Wiln SIaT

dis
puablc ez
» reite at age 30

vk
"

o]

i0 vears ¢

[l
e

»
I

W

~

0N
b6

A
5

{

EH s
Iy
A

N

€, Lyl W oo

0
i

tJune 30, 2017, are surn

<

i e ermp
Lgible ¢

"
<

CILS IO PIAD CIomBers whio mus

s of cediied seq

»f Lving adjus

1 bew
i

.

o1zl seovice are

iR
Foe

The cos
3" Retiremens Law

<
sased un Ve
L3

o

Ta
El

WIS B

niv

e
L five vesr

s
e Erm
Yl

U

jein

1
X
wi



Mendocine Transit Authorty
TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Jume 3¢

NOT

3o, 2017

NOTE 3 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN feontnued)

.\gthorz} Mliscels celizncous
On v afer

: } .JJ.?:.‘ i, 20 1

smg sThedail 3 vears soivice 3 veEsS sevice

Benefit payments imanhlv for life cmunenhy for e

Restrement zpe BN 3.6 '115
1

Morskly senefis 252 %0 of eligible compensanons AMFw i 2 2|8 PfHe 1 2 3%e 65
Reaquared empiovee contribunnn rates i 674947 (\l
Keauired ¢ M e CunIADUion raies ¢ YT, 5337,

Contab nons - Secion Z0810+{2) of the Cahfornia Pubic bmplovees” Retirerment Jaw reqoices that the

employer contribass rares for a2 publc emplovers be detremined oroan aneLa! basts by ithe poiuzn

ad shali be effccnve o e f iowing nonce of 2 wna ¢ i the ran tunding comtnbunons for

the Pians zre deienrmned annuslly on an aciaral Soes 2s o ine 3 by CalBiRS the zen ariali

determined rie y the exarroed 2mones recessany £ fina cee the rosts of peoetin carmed by emplovens

it to hnane soyv unfunded acorocd Fabiing i Vuthory o

durtag the vesr, wish 20 23dimens ann

fr‘. [AInE E)l TN t.&. 20 Uun 1| N (1. rere "':I rase ,-r.A "| v

cued to zomrthy e e g

mnbovers

For the vear etided Jaer 306, 2007, fue L smariburiors FEDEMiare as pas of peosion rapois

- . B S
Plan LRSS JUIEMN

\:.s:ﬂ'r..-.:..a

voreported net persies labiites B it mnmorUonat sheres of he

anneiug Plans as tebows:

v for the Plans s measured as the p 'z.-'orrmt‘.:::u share of tne nel

sion lishtliy of rhe Plons 1s measured 2s of Tane 30, 2016, ard the ool
tc caiculate the net pension iability was det crm_rwd by an acroaral

Authorny’s p*cnurt,on of the net pension kebdity was based on 2
5'.1’: of contributions 1o the pension plars relative to the
pailng emelovers, acn;a!_':ai_'_\ d::enm ed

~ . ~ . ) [

Tre Authonty’s propornicnate shace of the net pension Labliy for each Pian zs of june 30, 2015 and
2015 was as follows

_DMiscellzneous
Proportion - June 30, 2013 0] 189%4
Proportion - June 30, 2016 014339
Change ~ Increase (Decrease) 00263°,

35



Mendoziro Transir Authorin
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2017

NOTE S - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN ¢ contnued)

'=c vear crdc'*j.,,.e 30, 2027, e Authority recognized pension expense of $137,223, At June 39,
i Authory reparic - ceferred owsflows of resnurces and deferred inflows of resoarces relzied

R

s from the folowing sourzes

Deferred Deferred
Tnfiows of

’eosion cominbunions s.ose TLLLIT O meRsLrement dat
Jifferences bernween aciigl ard expucted experienc

I
Coanges o CEH U

f_'l‘?*'g" nempiover’s peonerion and differences benwpe=
theemplover’s cantibonions and the en miplover’s
proporienate share of coninbusines . .

X fterence beiwees e empener’s coninisutiors and teo

employer's propartiones stz of conibuions : 33,492
St diiferences benween projecied and reraal o ings
6= plan mvesimer . 28105l
Teta! 5 325 384 > 230,187

Uk SI84.327 amousr r..'p::rrc:. as Jc&"*cd ourlows of resnueces telated 1o contnburyg s, subsLgULE
ne ngt pensior Kabiliny in the yre un.‘.'_-i

aic wll be cagni das

amnengs repo ol L ferred eiflaes ("f resourees and deforeed (Lizﬂ(:u ) ol
ressasces refnicd I nensinrs v < roey mived ag penston experse 25 o

Year bnded fupe 38

iGid 3 L3, 28
3010 (30,266
07 33 2323
EHEY 2,28
e .
Thereafor .
Actyaina! .-"Lss-'.-n ons - The wrel peasinn lmhilnies o the Jume 3327 actiavial vplianang were

3

Al Plazs(2)
sy Date fune 3G, 2013

dMeasurement Date June 3¢, 2016
Actuanal Cost Methed Enty-Age Normal Cest Meihod

cruarial Assumpiions
stcoum Rare 7.63%
Irnflation 273%
Payroll Growrn 30%
Projected Salary Increese Varies by Entry Age and Service
Investment Rare of Return 7.5% (1)
Morzality Derived vsing CaiPERS Membership Dara for ali Funds (2)




DEFINED BENES

Mendozing Teansit Auths SIhy
NOTES 1O FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 32, 2017

IL PENSION PLAN (cont

(1) Netefpenswon p

(2) The mevialis

of me :..aL‘\ .nr».':\ u“'-'zs wsing Socd

5!’..). o b" dL CTrgse

MeRsiremen: da-:c i

fhscomse Rare (i

Te cotermine wheth

each plan, CalPHRS st

Y reble Used was c'-le"" 2o tased on CalPERY specific date Tl ren'e includes 3
e A
I

2y L\[‘..nsc The d
administealive expenses.

A
[ N

lan v cstmert expenses, tnzh
)

ms - (GASE ¢8R, peragrapn O states thar the ORE-ICIM UNRLOTed raty ::-:" rc:'-.:rr.

d e of RS "l:‘.’. myestment CXTUnsg,

P

Untrate of 163 nercen

withiu
113 measureme

g0 i

trom dhe actuanally assimed discoant race Bzued oo the esting, nanr of e tested p !:Hr- ran
ou' ef assets Theeefore, the currer: 63 purment disco. Rl by adegusie and rh': st of :'n: it ,..r!;,rr
Lot rate caloeiation s oo pe :.\vm The Lu,y, rerm erpecicd discount e of ~ 63 porcent wi'l be
apphed Pplans inotic Public Empioyees {u.rL aent Fured PERE) The streas test results acs

prosenied inoa deimled repori that car L. sbiaiacd from e C2IDERS Wrim

Ly

caleulated esing the
allozazion These rar

tng both shortarenm and long-term returns The cxpvcrcd e of

{'he ra=le telow refiec:

FIL 0D rolusm oot pohintione .'7 “

for vach mane axser f'i?.s.\'

ITEICUD BN CUICC rate o TUshovt enr ang

nons as weld 2 Ulser 1g nstoTics

nosnor-tenT and long-tesen, the sresent aiue of benefis

@
2
=4
o
e

iz of return was se Ty caleuls

1t value pf po

calzuiaied above z2nd reunded dowr to the noarest oOne gurer .‘nn. peroen:

w

tee long-term expecied ree! rate of rerurn By asser eloss. The cate of return was
caplial mzrkez assumptions appled ic determing the discouni rate and peser
s of terum are net of administrative expenses

37




NOTE 3

Mendocino ranse Authonn

AOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2017

New Stretegic Res! Return Real Rerumn
: Yeors -1 Years 114
3330, T
o S 343
Irfiziion Sensistve G (13 23z
Privese fquiny i 83 £33

Real Fisiare i =

W

. = i
¥

(=5

Irfrastructore snd borestiand 7 4

(V1

—
o
Lol
L

~=

—
=
1

are of ree No Pension [ s Wy 1 Charges @ the Do Keie

L, E presents the Awhomil's pronorfiora e share oF th el memc s Habiinn for rack T lass

FBLOWIRE prestals the AWRGIYS proportionaie shase o thy nol nension babibn for cach Tae
5 i t

celcofated vsing the discount vare for cagk Piang s vell s wl o the At s propoisansse shars of

Sersinty of the Pronorn
l k4

wonld be f i were saloulnred wsing 2 Cocounr rane tha s | BUILLniage ponm

fower or | opercentage poin: higher than the et mete

Miscolizrenus

P20 Deeicase 4.63¢.

Net Penston Feapehyy 527933 R 5

Curvene isnouant Ray 6t
st Peasiers Tashiiy RERER T
P90 Inerease 3} GAY

Ner Fenses [ abiliy S167.790

TAR's !-'(.,t":i.".('\ et POsTIom s avarable e SURATETLD A

Defined corrbinons oy afTune 30 20,7 zonsis: of the foloving:

N

-~
=3
)
Y]
-
v
4
e
e
i
uh
N
1
I
|

These plans covening a1l emplovees are # defined contabution pian that 1s 21so a deferred compensanion

p'an established vader the provisions of the Interna! Revense Cogde Section 457, Contributions to the
plar are withdrawn before rox znd the Authoriny will march up e 3% of the annual emplover salan

8
Vestng 15 100° 0 immediate for both the emplover and empleyee contrsburions

The iaws governing deferred compensation plan assers requlre plan asseis to be held by 2 Trust for the
exclusive benefit of plen participants and their beneficiaries Since the assers held under these plans are
not the Authorizy’s property, are not managed by the Authonty and are not subject to clawms by geneval
creditors of the Authonty, they have been excluded from these financial statements

- 18 -

I8




~OTE

B O 5 I

Mendoane Transit Authe urny
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT 1S
June 30 2007

8 1 5 e ve
sperating leases, 25 jesser The fesses 2o primardy for office

as q""lF‘L'a. Leasy twrms are 21 monti-to-monh AT riys

B
ble izése remms provisinzs fo tunlagent renmls, n

N uf.us:_?! restricions Rerowels of leases are MEETLATeC wire the visa: wher Fppropnnie

Srarg and LOCRD npenoies et | AN !"'\1..!.;21'!‘.""'\ T b..

Thkea .\..T‘.":l'\ resewes revenae from b
N

“rne £, T L R T LT Y | [ rauer-
W R0 :(}\a.(.(-_ N Unsuaiborizoo

i v Is Lt e tmgienate Plaamme - intt Tents
s ALinnry i voved v vanoes clan s ann lu

coased wooT thr Guanine of

1
swili net kave # materiabiv sdvere

cnan el sk mge

vear 20040

SLratinns

PR At dn reseved G e glep Preminnreue [drvelnnmes: \r SRR L v R WL L S PN e P
ooy g UNDUNSEN 120y (G U Ca.cudntinn of e fare revena TRl fo thg vorr o
207, s o

Operaing UXpUnsLS 5 2,763,405
Less Cenriciaton [a0 183
[Less: cass of smernlived srrvices EAURRVEE
Less mrniienence lntor

Lr

are reveriue ratio 1z 8o,

B MANAGEMENT

The Awtherin manages tisk of loss relazed to torts, theflt of, damege to, and destruction of assets,
srrors and erassions; wijuries 1o employees; and natural dlsas‘e*a by prrucipating m the public entin
rsk pocls described below and by retaining certain risks. The Aush Ty mainlains Insutance coverage
from a commercaal carrier for s Garage Keepers Insurance, Commercial Froperty and Inland Marine
coverage

39




NOTYE 31 -

Mendozing Trarsy Avthorin
NOTES TQ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fusie 30, 2017

e

RISK MANAGEMENT ¢

Public ente dsk poc

of Powers Act 0f the S0 of Californie As separnie fegal enniies, those ennties exercise ful cowers

vzt and separate enttics establisiied under he Jomt Exercise

and eathonies woie fhe stone 0F ke relered Jomt Powers Agreerienis including she preparetion of

:
annuz budpets recoireakbin Far 2l fomde fho .
annuea! budge:s, ecountabiln far all funds, rhe i

Fach ssk mool s goverred By s boara comsisting of representatives from mermher

Fazh boera conira’s the nneretinns of the FUSPRCINE LISk pog
1

approves of operating budgen, imdependert of any influgnze g . y
represenmangt o0 rhet eard Obligations snd habimes of chnse pisi pools #re no the Authoriny’s

resnirsihilin,

Risk Coverage

{he Awsh SOCAVTI wlich eovers balitin
znu vebisie GRITIAE Lonsured retenitton Gy deductihie
ot SA0i Ynce the Vuthorines selfinsu-ed

retenzion for elammis s mer, AT cames respnt “hic for rient of ol clavms up o $1 000,000

fFor cams ahove that amouarn CALTIP FaTeizae mRCEsL Coverrge up o SAOUANN Duasing the fsea!
tharity contribated S 01377 fu coverage

veacended June 38, 2017 ke

Fo Speatal Distecr ®osk Maczgemert Aatharn (SDRATY)

o claims et SEEIDIR

WL COUETS @ orhers’ com

The contn 2 cheriskopool egenl thie vatis of thes pesprciat pavrolls to the e paveels
e 1 e PP Y " e VERY e e b
i viial gaashasos o

: H :
WSS COsts ang snvesd o momner

1

y L
DFSUS AU SDAres ac

CRINIES G A Bereentage Dasis after # FUICOSPOCLVY YAlng

Kic
i
2T

Emplovee benetits S 117174
Workers' ¢

Self-insurance for emplovee benefits inciudes unemploymernt insurance and an emplovees’ czfeteria
piann Vebucle collision risks are parnally selfinsured by the Authoriry Potenal babiliey ciaims are
tisured by an insurance carrier, with a deductible of $25,000 per mcident Managemant believes there
were sufficient reserves to fund these liabilinies at June 30, 2017,

.70 .



NOTE 1 -

OFEL 12

NOYEE

NOTE 14-

Mendocing Transit Auarhoriy
NOTES TO FINANCIAL S .'&I_LMI_N NiS
June 30, 2017

L {concluded)

LR Y

faach vear the Authony b;dg=-t< an amount o be st aside dunng the vesr for self-nsarence €Os’s,
tased o scwanal csimates and avalebiliny of funds That ameur: i u:\pcndcr_’ and accrued ooz
dabilin zecount ao -ring the year Clatms are then charged 2gainst the labiliy accounr, 20d amv bzlaree
rermieting el vrar end s carned forward 1o tne nexs Asce! vear

The Nutmorin’s 2ciien estmare for the vliumare unpaid loss for velicle collisinn zrd

o5 meurred
Iz o Uabilty insoiarce was derved fror che June 3, A

IS vaization vepozt The fiscal vear

deduct’
ending jume 30, 2007 esurnzte was $25,000

CONCENTRANIION

zmount of revence
vahntand Stete leans \SSn anzsu irsr:sp::r:am)r. i)r\'clup:“: :

The Autharin recenes 2 subs

2007, o

tex reverce Durap e fiszal vear onded june 340

- ; . i
wivis 10 22%s e el oy e fov the ver

In Novemoer 208, Caltfornia Vetees passed o0 ong measure cm'"ﬂg ne Highway Nafety, Urafhic
Reducuan, A Q.;f.i-'_ ard Por Sy Bond Ner of 2006 OF the 316923 billion of siarc general
shiganon boeds swinonred, S» billing o ser eatde by the as mstrucivd by seatuie as the Poeblic

dermzanon Tmp ver =1 amd Service FEirhancemen: \zceunt _ﬁ"i MISEN) Thew
i ihe Cal r,,, & oioomartmen of Denanaeen SHE = pmr-" s fncd o

, capital service

L
ors in Califon.e for rooabih ction, safen o1 m

Pansi onere

erhancemenis o expanst. S, tew ca dtal progects, bus rapid ransi unprovements o

procaseen ebabilitoison & ceplee e

s Lo tie consimicnon phase of the Aliername
u:l-..:n.- nrotursmen af june 3, 2NV the

E
i PYe LT ey L . '8
4 EUL BLC0UAT, O Wi

SMISEA proceeds and el ,
: g | nE LXpENCITUres must be eacambered withie tliree
years from the date of the allozation and expended wathin three vears from the dase of encumbrarce

alance ar June 30, 2016 s ig-

PTMISEA receved 306,823
Ixpenduures incurred:
Transit buses o 306,843)

(4]
LA
o
I
o)
]
L
~t |

Unexpended proceeds at Jun

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In prepaning these financial statements, the Authonn has evaluated events and transactions for
potential recognution or disclosure through the date the financial statements were availzble to be issued

A



REUVIRFD SU L BN A INEORAM ATION




Merdocino Transit Authonn
As of June 30, 2017
“Last 10 Years
SCHEDULE OF THE AUTHORITY'S PROPORIION ATE,
SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

f . { \ "
Miscelaneass Miscelinreoas \:'SC‘.“.?!":::)';-.S

Pl P
[t A Piar
Fer Sz
Ut AP ]

.

5 U-"%’:_():‘*,f;

3 19erns

(%3]

[¥5]

]
C::H.".‘L'd c'.rp':m:c pavIe) 39 [37%4 £ I E-L 43 LR
W1 DUAUEON 9% P GOLCUNIAED
qHcE LR G 624,

F | P
AL LRI

Fixgplvoar 3203 wgs the b33 venr of anpior
B DFRiRa !. w3 SR Vilnnaceaiy b ! fi ¥Loo%
- - - TS o L] - Wy * aa I.-.
Miminrel yenes wit 5o Faninied G138 1 ‘ fLA.
o %

-

43




orim

I
LY

rAut

Trans
Last 10 Years

Kd - oy y A o
o = - . RS -~
e ~ ¢ . . o
i \ e o "y e
oo e t 5 -
W& o w3 N o
wd TS = !

[V |

-~ | w1 i v

D ~ gty 3

- 20 zy ~

3 -+ 3 - T
¢ 3 -, = i
] BT ST et

w w = N L ~,

o B b — | —

[T (o] >~ e

9] ] ™

1 ]

= i

/
ol
-\.-\':fn

.

I i .

o 1 o Y o8 e
P

« & oo %0 =z |

== Ho o
LA g !

i
¢

B
2

2

i oy v

w = =
1] : 5 . o
.n.m ! €
= ry
Vi Al i
& [¥] s T .._
it s b o0
. s 2l =
o £ o oo
1= 4. H 4 e
= - al o o
n. M. T - -
0o~ . TR
RN CR a4
s & S
..m_ oo ] [ Lo
el O e E
HoE g U, 5 ; S
Ao =i £ i e T
T 3] by R, izl
[T o5 o Y
e I'y] - vat 4o
£ . Ane b .
S - S R Pt R e =
. oo b Mo
= o 1 o BRL S e
TR i A o
sy ) wa &
oo b i o s o
o W = bt -
] i e - = ,
[T o) 3 = = :
w oo o - | L
- h L e F ] - i
N N - W T o
+ —
¥ | _.m Lol
s L




i ORT ON COMPLIANCE OVER FINANCIAL
QRTING BASED ON AN AUDIT QF FINANCIAL
5 TL\i"\'T\ PERIFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THESTATUTES, RULES, AND REGULATIONS OQF TiIE
CALTEORNIA TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT
ANDTHE ALLOCATION INSTRUCTIONS AND RE:‘-()I LTIONs
{ {OAN

E ‘E’

Q..),_E_ THE LOCAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSH

ssportanon Dovelomment Aot Funds of Mecdozes Tiaese
y

i
s nsve wsaed 2 renos rnereas deted 1000
e Meedooine Teims Aathnnin s Brancs siaeime s are iy
TUSS{AICINGNT, WU port cowith corpn provimons of rws) regalatioss conteass

racormpiEnce with wl vl kpve ¢ di aad man wl offent on thy derermuranor of fnenciat

stemenst amowms Addinenaly, e n:--.[:-.'.”r'-::‘- tests oo detcrmme S extemd s p-'x“ by rive Mendoen
| f

tharn ransporaton Develesswen: Aes

LIsrUSHONS Aane

wsolcnors of the Mendogine {ounsd of Governmoents png - eor formance wark the Cabfornes FARSPOIALIn,

T
Deveinpment Aer Spedificaly, we performed cach of the speciac wsss adeatified in the California Code of
Regulatons Secrions 3534 and 6667 thar 2r aaplce ‘e to Mendocino | ransy Vathorines wse of Uvansporrasion
Developmient et Funds Te zanceonos with 1 -l TTRIPZ CRIME 10 0L 23er et that cansed o to beltve rea

Menzioomn  Lranse Satmane falled  ocowmh owoBoghe Stattes Rules, and Rega!

of the (rlifor
Developmen: Ao and iz alin clion anstrachions puas resociioss or Mepdorims Cooncd

3]
-
2]
o

]
=

Howerer, proviting an o, iom on ¢ mphance wWith those or isens wes nsi an objeetive of they s,

il
sl aren ety o e MYEeSs S g e
iy -

T . 2 LT LR 5 E T il LB k] . FOLAT A CaiaTe 20t a3 1 Bt e SEh e FRahte (sl thel g

specified maries

_u.
et
3
— A
‘a
=3
vl
y
B
H
Ll
3

¢ E

45




AGENDA ITEM #9 (Revised)

TO: MTA Board of Directors
FROM: Mark Harvey, Finance Director
RE: Finance Report

DATE: September 26, 2018

Auditors were on site from August 29" through August 31%, and completed fieldwork for the 2016-2017 audited
financial statements. The Draft financial statements are being presented at this meeting by Michael O'Connor
of R. J. Ricciardi, inc.

The 2017-2018 fiscal year accounts are being reconciled and draft unaudited financial statements will be
presented at the October 2018 Board meeting. Kate Stornetta will be assisting us with the reconciliation
process as she did with 2016-2017.

Cash & Capital/Receivable Balances at September 213, 2018, include:

Cash & Capital Funds:
Operating Funds
Senior Operating

Operating Reserve 100,265.96
Payroll Account 202,044.35
Benefit Account 20,971.20
LCTOP 157,740.82
MTA Capital 529,655.97
PTIMSEA 570,164.46
CAL-QES/TSSDRA 146,241.65
State Transit Assistance 461,569.86 *

Total Cash & Capital
Due from:

2,028,741.25

MCOG - 2018/19- LTF 788,766.25 July, Aug, Sept
MCOG - 2018/19 -STA Funds 349,000.00
MCOG - 2017/18 - Senior Funds 88,446.00
Sonoma County 2018-2019 43,050.00
Redwood Coast Regional Center 39,382.04
Other Receivables (est.) 3,500.00
Total Due 1,312,144.29
Available From:

MCOG-Capital Reserve -Vehicle 343,201.15
Available to eligible transit operators

MCOG STA - Fund Balance available 291,184.00
MCOG-Capital Reserve-MTA

2018/2019 Allocation 331,645.00
Total Available 966,030.15

*Researching balance



AGENDA ITEM #10

TO: MTA Board of Directors
FROM: Caria Meyer, General Manager
RE: State of Good Repair

DATE: September 26, 2018

The Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017, Senate Bill (SB) 1 (Chapter 5, Statues
of 2017) signed by the Governor on April 28, 2017, includes a program that will provide
additional revenues for transit infrastructure repair and service improvements. This
investment in public transit is referred to as the State of Good Repair program. This
program provides funding of approximately $105 million annually to the State Transit
Assistance (STA) Account. These funds are to be made available for eligible transit
maintenance, rehabilitation and capital projects.

MTA via the MCOG is programmed to receive $128,995 in State of Good Repair Funds
for FY 2017-18. These funds can be rolled forward for anticipated Capital Projects.

MTA has applied for these funds to provide matching funds for a future Transit Center
and/or Administration Building.

Recommendation: Approve Resolution #2018-09, authorizing General Manager to
apply for State of Good Repair Funds.

47



Page 5 of 5

ATTACHMENT 1
RESOLUTION #2018-09

AUTHORIZATION FOR THE EXECUTION OF THE
CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES
FOR THE CALIFORNIA STATE OF GOOD REPAIR PROGRAM

WHEREAS, the Mendocino Transit Authority is an eligible project sponsor and may receive
State Transit Assistance funding from the State of Good Repair Account (SGR) now or
sometime in the future for transit projects; and

WHEREAS, the statutes related to state-funded transit projects require a local or regional
implementing agency to abide by various regulations; and

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 1 (2017) named the Department of Transportation (Department) as the
administrative agency for the SGR; and

WHEREAS, the Department has developed guidelines for the purpose of administering and
distributing SGR funds to eligible project sponsors (local agencies); and

WHEREAS, the Mendocino Transit Authority wishes to delegate authorization to execute these
documents and any amendments thereto to the General Manager, Carla A. Meyer.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Mendocino
Transit Authority that the fund recipient agrees to comply with all conditions and requirements
set forth in the Certification and Assurances document and applicable statutes, regulations and
guidelines for all SGR funded transit projects.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Manager, Carla A.
Meyer be authorized to execute all required documents of the SGR program and any
Amendments thereto with the California Department of Transportation.

AGENCY BOARD DESIGNEE:

BY:

Rev. 0101 11



TO:
FROM
RE:
DATE:

AGENDA ITEM #11

MTA Board of Directors

: Carla Meyer, General Manager
Special Events Schedule
September 26, 2018

On January 14, 2008, the Federal Transit Administration ("FTA") released a Final
Rule on Charter Service that went into effect April 30, 2008.1 The general

purpose of the Charter Service Final Rule is to protect private charter operators from
unauthorized competition from recipients of federal financial assistance. As such,
the FTA has placed limitations on public transit agencies providing bus

charter services. The 2008 Final Rule provides procedural rules and an enhanced
administrative adjudicatory process to govern and regulate violations.

Highlights of the FTA's Final Rule on Charter Service

Private Charter Operators:

Must register at FTA’s new Charter Registration Website (49 C.F.R. Part 604.13)
Are entitled to notice of proposed charter trips by public transit agencies

(49 C.F.R. Part 604.14)

May file a Complaint against a public transit agency for unauthorized charter
service (49 C.F.R. Part 604.27)

May review public transit agencies’ reports on charter services

(49 C.F.R. Part 604.12)

Public Transit Charter Requirements:

Upon receiving a request for charter service, the application for said service must
be posted on the FTA website. If no response is received from a registered
private charter operator es received within specified timeframes, the public transit
system may perform the charter service.

If registered private charter operator expresses interest, transit systems cannot
provide charter, regardless of whether the private operator does so or not.
Transit system must file quarterly reports with FTA providing specified details for
each such charter

In years past, MTA has provided Charter service in accordance with the FTA rules.

All

charter requests were published via the FTA website to private charter agencies

as available work and did not receive any private requests to provide the services.
However, during the last year, charter requests have been responded to by private
carriers preventing MTA from performing the services.



In lieu of this, MTA is no longer providing private charter service. However, in view
of the many service events of long-standing non-profit agencies who rely on MTA for
transportation services, MTA is proposing to create a ‘Special Events Schedule’.
These events would be listed on the schedule and posted on our webpage. As
scheduled annual events they would be exempted from the FTA Final Rule on

Charter Service.

Recommendation: Approve addition of Special Events Schedule to MTA service
matrix.

50



G,

2018-2019 SPECIAL EVENTS SCHEDULE

Willits Frontier Days - July

Fort Bragg Salmon BBQ - July

Winesong - Fort Bragg - September

Mendocino Area Parks Association
Fort Bragg - September

Ukiah Christmas Trolley
November-December

51




AGENDA ITEM #12

TO: MTA Board of Directors

FROM: Carla Meyer, General Manager

RE: Revision of MTA FY18/19 Capital Budget
DATE: September 26, 2018

At the June, 2018 Board of Directors meeting, FY 18-19 Operating and Capital budgets
were presented and approved.

At that time, the Capital Reserve Funds held by the Mendocino Council of Governments
in the amount of $632,138 was not accurately reflected in the Facility Solarization and
Modernization — By Project portion of the Capital Plan.

This revision corrects only that portion of the plan and validates the MCOG in holding
these funds until utilized.

Recommendation: Review and approve Resolution #2018-10, FY 18/19 MTA Capital
Budget, Rev.#1.

52



REVENUE / EXPENDITURES BY FUND TYPE

Capital Reserve - MCOG 2018/19 2019/20 2020121 2021122 2022/23
Bey. Balance-Unaliocated by MCOG 291473
Depaosit 680,635 623,108 623.9108 623,108 623,108
interest 300
Withdrawal/Expenditure 349,000
End Balance §623,108 $623,108 $623,108 $623,108 $623,108
State Transit Assistance (MTA - STA) 2018118 2018/20 202021 2021422 2022123
Beginning Balance 300,000
Afiocated to Operations 300,000
interest or
budgeted or spent 300,000
End Balance $0
ESTIMATED AMOUNTS
Other 201813 2019120 202021 2021122 2022/23

Beginning Balance
Specific Sources
income (sale of asssets)

Interast f
Withdrawal/Expenditure
End Balance $0 $0 | $0 I[ $0
Federal - 6310 Bus Program 2018119 2019/20 2020/21 2021122 2022123
Beginning Balance 120,000 130,000 130,000
Withdrawal/Expenditure 120,000 130,000 [ | 130,060
End Balance $C $0 $0 $0
[
201819 2019120 2020/24 2021/22 2022123
State Transportation Improvement Program {STIP) !
Beginning Balance o
Allocated by CTC 44 000 '
from>
budgeted or spent 544,000 _ |
| $0 50 50 $0 I 30
! I
2018119
Proposition 1B (2006} - Public Transit Modernization, Improvemant and Service Account - {PTM} |
Beginning Balance 300493
received 0
htorast + aiustment 0 END OF 10-YEAR FUNDING PROGRAM
budgeted or spent 300,793
End Balance 0 | |
| 4
2018119 2019/20
Proposition 1B (2006) - Transit System Securlty (Security) |
Beginning Balance 80.437 o
Appropriated. and allocated 1o MTA 80,427 60000
interest e 250 END OF 16 -YEAR PROGRAM
budgeted or spent $80,837 60250
£nd Balance | 0 0 | |
Fund usage restrictive. Utilization must
be connected to new or expanded rovenue
Cap & Trade 2018/19 2018120 2020/21 2021722 2022123
Beginning Balance 15.400 71.245
Appropriated, and allocated to MTA 128,995 128,995
Used for Operations 73,400 73,400
interast 250 350
budgeted or spant $73400 127,180 rofing forward for alectric bus purchase
£nd Balance $71,245 | $0

I

TOTAL EXPENDITURES FROM FUND

BALANCES $799,030 $307,440



MTA Five -YearCapital Vehicle Replacement Plan

E::_"__ 7 = ratire and sail
= buy

Staff - Vehicles

Odomster i
Fund # Year MakeiMod 18/19 19/20 20121 21122 22123
AgWorker AG 1| 09|Escape hybrid - AW REPLACE _
STIF 201] 11[ChevVol plug-in-hybrid REPLACE _
STA 7, 1" Toyota Prius hybrid REPLACE
5TA 308 1 Toyota Prius hybrid _REPLACE
309 Hybiid - ALL Wheel BUY | _REPLACE
310 Hytrid - All Whee! BUY
311 electric BUY
32 hybrid BUY
313 electric BUY
314 elechic BUY
315
318
Maintenance - Facilities Vehicles
I 16118 19720 2021 21022
| FUND Van for Cteaing
96 07 Sprinter MTC - F MIC-F
87 07 Sprinter MTC-U MTC-Uu
STA 84 18 buy MTC-F
STA 93 18 buy MTC -U
Pickup Truck
STA 98 02 Ford E350
CAPTIAL R. 95 14 MTC -U MTC -U MTC - U
Dial-a-Ride - Paratransit Vans
Odometer { |
0 0
Fund #| Year|Make/Mod 18119 19/20 20/21 21122 2223
619{ 11|Glaval gas
620 11{Glaval gas
821] 11[Glaval gas _DAR
822{ 11|Glaval gas | DAR
623| 11)Glaval gas __DAR
824} 13]Glaval gas DAR
825] 13[Glaval gas
628{ 13)Glaval gas ~ DAR
B27] 13)Glaval gas ___DAR
£28]| 13|Glaval gas
PTIMSEA 628 17
PTIMSEA 630) 18
5310/ISTA 631/ 18 BUY
S53t1MSTA 632] 18 auy
5310/STA 833} 18 BUY
5310/5TA 834 19 BUY
SH0/STA 635 19 BUY
5310/STA 836) 19 BUY
5310/5TA B37| 19
5310/5TA 838) 19
5310/5TA 639 20
640; 27

ET:]




Fixed Route Fleet - Medium Duty Buses

Odometer Type VIl VIl or Class E
0 O|Life: 7 years or 200,000 miles
Fund #| ¥ear|MakeiMod 18/19 20021 21i22 22123
806| 12(iC Eston Hybrid
807| 12/IC Eaton Hybiid
808| 15{Cummins __feplace
808! 15[Cumnmins _ feplace
810} 15[Cummins
PTIMSEA a1 Replaced wiFR Culaway
PTIMSEA 812 Replaced wiFR Cutaway
STA 613 BUY
STA 814 BUY
STA 815
STA 816
STA 817
818
819
820
Fixed Route Fleet - Heavy Duty Buses
Hubometer
Fund #  Year Make/Mod 1819 20121 21122 22{23
803; 97(35° Gillig iraining
906 99/40° Gilig [ r
910 12{40° (iflig Clean Diesel Low Floor
911] 12{40" Gillig Clean Diesel Low Floor
912 12{40° Gillig Clean Diesel Low Floor
913| 12]40° Gillig Clean Diesel Low Floor
814] 12]40' Gilig Clean Diesel Low Fioor
9167 13[40"_Gillig Clean Diesel Low Floor
916] 13[40" Gillig Clean Diesel Low Floor
917} 13[40' Gillig Ciean Diesel Low Floar
918 By
819
820
9zt
922
923
924
925
926

55




Senior Center Fleets

Type Il, or 1A, or Class A
5 YEARS OR 150,000 MILES

Anderson Valley

Fund # Year Make/Mod 18119 19120 20 21422 2223
27 54 ARRA 7504 10]Glavalgas
1 £310 7505 17] sernv sery e = i it}
!_‘Bl.rlr ' L e 1 i =13 E SR —
Redwood Coast [
T Fund #  Year Make/Mod 1819 1920 20 Hidd poire]
142 L3511 7810 03| Gashen = 7]
130 125 5310 7811 05|[State) EiDorado e i
45 B3] &AP  7a14 _ {1|Glaval gas puiple B —
] 5316 7816 14|Glavsi jas back e
7818 16 SRy serv Sery =
6310 1 7817 18 serv | serv serv -
8310|7818 19 i
I BUY I —5 i —
South Coast I I J
Fund #  Year Make/Mod 18119 19120 20i21 21422
80 a7 STIP 7208 MTA Borfowed Bus
5310 7206 MNew Bus
5310 7207 Expansion Bus sary | serv | serv
— BOY 0 ] 3
Ukiah | |
Vahicle #'s Fund #  Year Make/Mod 18119 18120 20121 21122 22123
103 122 5310 7112 | 07]Starcraft
59 86 STIP 7114} 08[{State) Starcrafi backup backup
70 a7 STIP T116 [ 09[{State) Starcrafi sarv sery
17 5310 T147 [ 14[Glaval serv Serv
5310 7118 15| Glaval serv serv
5310 7119 | 17|Accessible Mini-Van buy by
5310 7120 19 tuy
7121 20
BUY 0 ] i
Willits | ) 1
T o R = | =
| Fund # Year Make/Mod 1819 18120 W | 2 223 |
____ﬁ; 95 7407 07| Handa Lidyssey 1
1o 35 5310 7409 12|Glaval gas serv | serv ] e I
4 5310 7410 15[Dodge T Taew T serv = e ]
| 5310 7411 _ buy - =
6310 7511 o I
"' HUY = 1] '] -




MTA Five-Year Capital Plan

Vehicle Replacement Plan - Estimated Costs

Schedule of Purchases

18119 19/20 20/21 21122 22/23
Staff - Hybrid AW 1 1
Staff - Electric 1 2
Staff - Mtc Van 2
Staff - Mtc Truck
Senior Center Mini-Van 1
Senior Centar Bus 6
Dial-A-Ride Bus 2 2 2
Cutaway Buses 3 3 3 3 3
Medlum Duty Bus 2
Heavy Duty Bus 1
TOTAL 5 7 13 ] 7
Unit Cost {$000)* 1819 | 1920 | 2w | 2u22 ] 22023
Staff - Hybrid AW $37.,500 $37,500
Staff - Electric $32,000 $33,000
Staff - Mtc Van $35,000
Staff - Mtc Truck (crow)
Senior Center Mini-Van §49,000
Seonlor Center Bus $75,000
Dial-A-Ride Bus $125,000 $127,500 $128,000
Cutaway Bus $125,000 $125,000 $125,000 $130,000 $130,000
Medium Duty Diesel $200,000
Heavy Duty Bus
Medlum Duty Hybrid
Medium Duty Electric
efectric
TOTAL ANNUAL COST 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23
Staff - Hybrid AW $0 $0 $37,500 $37.500 30
Staff - Electric $0 50 $32,000 $66,000 50
Staff - Mtc Van $0 $70.000 $0 $0 $0
Staff - Mtc Truck (crow) $0 50 $0 $0 $0
Senlor Center Mini-Van $49,000 30 30 $0 §49.000
Senior Center Cutaway 50 $0 $0 $0 30
Dial-A-Ride Bus $0 $250,000 $255,000 $0 $256,000
Cutaway Bus $375,000 $375,000 $375.000 $390,000 $390,000
Medium Duty Diesel $0 $0 $0 50 $400,000
Heavy Duty Bus §0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Medium Duty Hybrid $0 $0 50 $0 30
Medium Duty Electric $0 50 $0 $0 30
Total Annual Gosts $424,000 $695,000 $699,500 $493,500 $1,085,000

57



Equipment Purchase Detail

Category Five-Year
| [Project 18119 19/20 20127 29722 | 22123 | Total
Operations }
Miscellaneous 2.000 2,000 2,000 2,000 $3,000 $12,000
Uniforms 3,500 3,500 3,500 4,000 $4,000 $18,500
Office Furniture 5000 2,000 2000 2000 $3,000 $14,427
ReuteMatch AVL, Push to Talk, Route Shout $3,000
Computers: Ops Manager 2000 $3,500
Computers: Training Supervisor 1,500 $1,500
Computers: Dispatch Supervisor 1,500 $1,500
Computers: South Coast Supervisor 1,500 $3,000
Computers: $0
Computers: Fort Bragg Supervisor 50
Training Equipment 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 $10,000
Transportation Totals $12,500 $9,500 $15500 | $12,000 | $10,000 | $70,427 |
Five-Year
Vehicles ] 18119 19/20 20021 21722 I 22123 Total
Miscellaneous 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 10,000 22,000
Coach Transmissions and Engines 5000 5000 5000 5000 20,000 45144
0 0
/] 0
0 1]
Vehicles Total | $7,500 | $7,500 $7,500 $7,500 | $30,000 | $67,144
Five-Year
Maintenance | 1819 19/20 20/21 2122 | 2233 Total
Miscellaneous 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 $3,000 $20,000
Uklah Yard Reseal 12,000 12,500 $35,952
Willits Yard Reseal 4000 $8,000
Ft. Bragg Yard Reseal 3,000 3,500 $6,500
Wood seal north walf of shop 5,000 $9,507
Floor Scrubber 5,500 $5,500
Braak Room Roof 15,000 $40,000
Wash Bay Brushes 7.000 $14,000
Window Replacement 8,000 ~ T $8,000
Mitcheli Software 50
Old Ukiah Shop - Remode! 35,000 35,000 $70,000
Tire machine, sensor friendly 12,000 $12,000
Flest Software 25,000 $25,000
Zonar Pre-Trip Wireless 25,000 $25,000
Alignment Equipment 28,000 $28,000
Emmissions Smoke Tester 2,500 $2,500
Wash Bay Pumps and Motors 4,800 7,000 $13,751
Repiace Diagnostics L.aptop 2,000 2,500 $4,500
| Bob's Computer 2,500 $4,600
Scaffolding 5,000 $5,000
Nitrogen Tire Inflation System 25,000 $25,000
Gas Pumps 20,000 $20,000
Maintenance Totals | $170,300 [ $49,000  $68,500  $31,000 | $3,000 | $382,210

i




Equipment Purchase Detail
Category Five-Year
Project 16718 18/20 20121 2023 | 2223 Total
Office - Administration |
Miscellaneous 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3500 $19,000
Lease Copier for Ukiah/Ft. Bragg 15,000 15,500 16,000 16,500 $63,000
Heavy Duty Paper Shradder 3.500 $3,500
Coin Sorter 2.500 $2,500
Wiring Upgrade 5,000 $5.000
Managed IT Network/Care 80,437 $80,437
Office Lighting & Fumniture 5,000 1,000 2000 $9,462
Telephone+Cell, replace + headsets 16,000 $16,000
Video Conference Ukiah and UVConfCtr $0
Web Page TimeTable Design + Install 5.500 $5,500
Computer - Receptionist 1,500 1.500 1,500 $4,500
Computer - HR 1,500 1.500 $4,500
Computer - Accounting Specialist 1,800 $3,300
Computer - Finance Manager 1,500 $6,228
Computer - GM 1,500 $4,000
Computer - Finance Clerk 1,500 1,800 $3,300
HR - Copier, Recording Equipment 2,500 $2,500
Administration Totals | § 128937 [ $ 21,500 [ § 33,800 $25300 | | $ 230,227
I Five-Year
Shelters and Benches | 1819 19120 20/21 2122 | 22723 | Total
Shelters 1,000 1,200 1.500 2,500 $1,500 $28,652
Benches {materials) 1,500 1,200 1,500 1,500 $1,200 $10,530
Bus Stops & Signs 20,000 $15.000 $45,000
| Stops 150,000 $150,000
$0
$0
50
|Shelters and Benches Totals | s2500 | $22,400 | $3,000 | $154,000 | $17,700 | $234,182
I Five-Year
Sacurity | 189 | 120 | 2001 2122 | 22023 Total
Install Maintenance Facﬁ'ily Generator 1]
0
0
0
Security Total $0 | $0 $0 $0 ] $¢ | $0

59




Mendotino Transd Authznly

Facllity Solarization and Modernization - By Project

W262018

REVENUE SQURCE
Faderal State Local
caps FY  Project $ COST| Gram Amount | 18 Modem 1B Sscurly [ STA  CepBTrade Reserve TOTAL
89 12/13 Stant Design Admin/Ops 115 888 . . T 115,868 : 115 868
89 13/14 Start Design AdminCps w02 w2 902
89 19/20 Finish Design Admin/Ops 262,500 210,000 . 13,125 39,375 262,500
18/19 440 Transformer 109,000
83 2324 Construet AdrminiQOps. 795,000 836,000 - 39750 119,250 - 795,000
B3 24/25 Construet Admin/Ops 4,260,000 3424000 | 300000 320,000 9600C 502763 ] 4732763
sublotal 5,554,270 4270,000 | 300.000 489645 215250 632,138 5,907,033
TOTAL for design & construction 13,102 595 2,740,000 1523695 9619 710130 215250 1152664  13,462358
T0TAl wi feasidility & environmental 13,229.284 . 9.740.000 1523695 192618 710930 215250 1273353 13562047
MTA TRANSIT CENTER PROJECT
REVENUE SOURCE
Fedaral State Local
teps FY  Project $ COST| Gram Amourt | 18 Modern 1B Security [ STA - SGR Cap & Trade  Reserve TOTAL
100 18119 Transit Genter Site Study 75,000 75,000 75,000
100 1920 Purchass Property 331,645 128,995 128,995

100 2002¢ Transit Center Design
100 23724 Consiruct Transit Center
sublotal




MENDOCINO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
RESOLUTION #2018-10
MTA FY18-19 CAPITAL BUDGET, REV.#1

WHEREAS:

1. MTA policy calls for the adoption of annual balanced budgets and,

2. The MTA Board of Directors adopted a final FY18-19 Operating and Capital
Budget on June 27, 2018, and

3. Staff has revised the FY18-19 Capital Budget to accurately refiect capital funds
held by the MCOG for future Administration and/or Transit Center construction,

and

4. The Board of Directors reviewed, revised details of this budget

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the MTA Board of Directors hereby:

Adopt the FY 18-19 Capital Budget, Revision #1 as presented to the Board and
dated September 26, 2018.

ADOPTION of this RESOLUTION was MOVED by Director and SECONDED by
Director at a regular meeting of the MTA Board of Directors on September 26, 2018
by the following Roll Call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

ATTEST:

Jim Mastin, Chairman Carla A. Meyer, General Manager

61



